
 

 
 

BENICIA PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – Meeting 
SENIOR CENTER, 187 EAST L STREET - Workshop 

 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, November 13, 2008 
5:30 P.M. 

 
 

I. OPENING OF MEETING  
 
A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Roll Call of Commissioners 
 

Present:         Commissioners Richard Bortolazzo, Rick Ernst, Rod Sherry, 
                       Lee Syracuse, Brad Thomas and Chair Railsback. Commissioner  
                       Healy arrived at 5:35 P.M. 
Absent:          None 
 
Staff Present:  Damon Golubics, Principal Planner 
                        Kat Wellman, Contract Attorney 
                        Mike Marcus, Assistant Planner 
                        Rhonda Corey, Senior Administrative Clerk 
 

C. Reference to Fundamental Rights of Public - A plaque stating the Fundamental Rights of 
each member of the public is posted at the entrance to this meeting room per Section 
4.04.030 of the City of Benicia’s Open Government Ordinance. 

 
II. AGENDA CHANGES AND DISCUSSION 

None. 
 

III. OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT  
 

A. WRITTEN 
             None. 
B. PUBLIC COMMENT  
             None. 



 

 2

 
IV. CONSENT CALENDAR  

On the motion of Commissioner Syracuse, seconded by Commissioner Sherry, the Consent Calendar 
was approved by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:                    Commissioners Bortolazzo, Ernst, Sherry, Syracuse, Thomas and Chair Railsback 
Noes:                     None 
Absent:                 Commissioner Healy arrived  
Abstain:                Commissioner Syracuse from item V (B) only 
                             Commissioner Thomas from item V (C) only: 
 
A. Approval of Agenda  
B. Approval of Minutes of October 9, 2008 
C. Approval of Minutes of October 14, 2008 
 

V. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS  
 

A.         439 FIRST STREET – LUCCA BAR AND RESTAURANT USE PERMIT FOR 
LIVE ENTERTAINMENT AND ALCOHOL BEVERAGE SALES  
08PLN-56 Use Permit 
439 First Street, APN: 89-174-030 

 

PROPOSAL:  
In accordance with the Downtown Mixed Use Master Plan, the applicant requests approval of a 
Use Permit for alcohol beverage sales between the hours of 9pm and 2am and for indoor live 
entertainment. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve a Use Permit for a bar establishment and live entertainment, for 
the proposed bar and restaurant located at 439 First Street, based on the findings, and subject to 
the conditions listed in the proposed resolution and as discussed during the public hearing. 
 
Mike Marcus gave a presentation regarding Lucca Bar and Restaurant and also made note of 
revised conditions for the project.  
 
Commissioner Sherry asked if staff level review is required for hours of operation. Mike Marcus 
said the Planning Commission should review it. 
 
Commissioner Bortolazzo questioned what type of lighting would be present on the E Street side  
of the building. The applicant will address the question after his presentation. 
 
Chair Railsback asked if other businesses have been denied. Damon Golubics advised that the 
Police Department has approved the application. Chair Railsback asked if staff or the Planning 
Commission would address design review. Damon Golubics stated that the Historic Preservation 
Review Commission would be responsible for design review. 
 
Commissioner Healy said that he feels that the business would be good for the downtown area. 
Believes that other businesses should be allowed. 



 

 3

 
Commissioner Ernst asked if alcohol would be served between the hours of 9 P.M.-2 A.M. 
Damon Golubics said that a use permit would be required if alcohol was served during those 
hours. Commissioner Ernst asked if amplified music would be allowed with limits or 
restrictions. Mike Marcus said that at this time there are no plans for amplified music. 
Commissioner Ernst asked if the yard to the rear of the business on West E Street belongs to the 
business. Mike Marcus advised that it does and there would be a rear deck, which would comply 
with ADA requirements. There would be no tables or chairs in that area. Commissioner Ernst 
asked if smoking would be allowed. Mike Marcus says that per the applicant, the back deck area 
would be a designated smoking area and would also serve as a legal exit.  
 
Commissioner Thomas asked if the only ADA access and exit would be from the back deck 
area. Mike Marcus stated that the front will also be ADA accessible with a total of three ADA 
accessibility points.  
 
The applicant Jan Lucca gave a presentation and said that he agrees with the staff report and 
conditions. He said that music is not an issue at this point, as any live entertainment would not 
be amplified. There will be two ADA ramps. One at the front door and one at the back door. 
There will be non-smoking tables in front of the business and the side of the business. Smoking 
tabled would be located in back of the business on the deck. Commissioner Bortolazzo asked 
which outside tables would be smoking tables. Jan Lucca stated that three tables in the back near 
the deck would be designated smoking tables. 
 
Jan Lucca advised that lighting issues have not yet been addressed for the outdoor areas but will 
be in the future.  
 
Commissioner Syracuse said that he is very happy about the location.  
 
Commissioner Ernst was surprised that there was no public comment on the project. He asked 
the proper noticing requirements were met. Damon Golubics advised that they were. 
Commissioner Ernst also asked if the building would be properly insulated due to the live 
entertainment proposed.  
 
RESOLUTION NO. 08-11   (PC) - A RESOLUTION OF THE PLANNING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF BENICIA APPROVING A USE P ERMIT FOR 
A BAR ESTABLISHMENT WITH LIVE ENTERTAINMENT AT 439 FIRST 
STREET 
 
On motion of Commissioner Bortolazzo, seconded by Commissioner Healy, the above 
resolution was adopted by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:   Commissioners Bortolazzo, Ernst, Healy, Sherry, Syracuse, Thomas and 

Chair Railsback 
Noes:  None 
Absent: None 

 



 

 4

Recess called By Chair Railsback at 5:53 P.M.  
 
Reconvened at the Senior Center (187 East L Street) at 6:40 P.M. 
 

VI. WORKSHOP (6:30 p.m.) 
 

A.  CLIMATE ACTION PLAN – Cal Poly City and Regiona l Planning 
Workshop Facilitators:  Professor Zeljka Howard, Dr. Adrienne Greve and Cal Poly 
students 
 
The Climate Action Plan is the implementation strategy to achieve the greenhouse gas 
(GHG) reduction target adopted by the City Council on September 16, 2008. The City's 
project consultant is the Cal Poly, San Luis Obispo City and Regional Planning 
Department community design lab.  
 
The purpose of the workshop is to inform members of the public about the City’s climate 
protection planning process, set a community vision, and solicit ideas and input on 
implementation strategies. The City encourages everyone to participate in the workshop. 
 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM STAFF  
None 
 

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM COMMISSIONERS  
None. 
 

IX. ADJOURNMENT  
            Workshop was adjourned at 8:47 P.M. 


